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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Board of Trustees 
Cowley County Community College and Area Vocational-Technical School 
Arkansas City, Kansas 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities and the aggregate discretely 
presented component unit of the Cowley County Community College and Area Vocational-Technical School (College), 
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017. and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise the College's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, 
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, the standards applicable to 
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, 
and the Kansas Municipal Audit and Accounting Guide. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit 
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financia' 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the 
auditor considers internal control reievant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonabLeness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 

Opinion 

n our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial 
position of the business-type activities and the aggregate discretely presented component units of the College, as of 
June 30, 2017, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year 
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
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COWLEY COUNTY COMMtJNITY COLLEGE AND 
AREA VOCATIONAL-TECHNICAL SCHOOL 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
(Unaudited) 

This section of the Cowley County Community College and Area Vocational-Technical School's ("the 
College") ("Cowley College") Annual Financial Report presents management's discussion and analysis. 
Management's Discussion and Analysis is included to provide a narrative introduction, overview, and 
analysis of the financial position and changes in financial position of the College's financial activity during 
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. Since management's discussion and analysis is designed to focus on 
current activities, and currently known facts, please read this in conjunction with the College's basic 
financial statements and the notes thereto. Responsibility for the completeness and fairness of this 
information rests with the management of the College. 

Financial Highlights 

In fiscal year 2016-2017, the College continued to evaluate the college's financial resources and spending, 
aligned with the approved annual budget. Additionally, the management continues to make changes to 
accounting policies and processes to take advantage of the new ERP's ability to assist in recording and 
reconciling accounting transactions throughout the fiscal year. The college continues to ensure its finances 
are sustainable in the face of state appropriations' cuts. The college continues to utilize the 2015-2018 
Strategic Plan. The plan includes the following six goals as the foundation for enrollment growth, student 
success, and financial stability. 

Goal 1:Student Success: Cowley College is focused on the design, deployment, and effectiveness of 
teaching-learning process. 

Goal 2: Student/Stakeholder Needs: Cowley College is focused on determining, understanding and 
meeting needs of current and prospective students and other key stakeholders including alumni and 
community partners. 

Goal 3: Valuing People: Cowley College is committed to the hiring, development, and evaluation of 
faculty, staff, and administrators. 

Goal 4: Technology Infrastructure: Cowley College is focused on the management of the 
technological and information infrastructure designed to provide an environment of support 
learning, including how data, information, and performance resulis are used in decision-making 
processes at all levels and in all parts of the institution. 

Goal 5: Financial Parameters: Cowley College is focused on how the resource base of an institution 
supports and improves its educational programs and operations. 

Goal 6: Planning and Leading: Cowley College is focused on its mission and lives its vision through 
direction setting, goal development, strategic actions, threat mitigation, and leveraging opportunities. 

The focus of each goal is on student success, and the college continues to achieve many initiatives set forth 
in past two fiscal years. The college maintains its vision statement, mission statement, core values, and 
strategic theme as follows: 



COWLEY COUNTY COIvLMUN1TY COLLEGE AND 
AREA VOCATIONAL-TECHNICAL SCHOOL 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
(Unaud ited) 

Vision Statement 
Champion the relevance of two-year cofleges in higher education through holistic learning and workiorce development opportunities. 

Mission Statement 
Cowley College is committed to providing opportunities for learning excellence, personal achievement, and community engagement. 

Core Values 
People, Accountability, Integrity, Leadership 

Strategic Theme 
With integrity and passion, Cowley College advances its mission and vision by  supporting the attainment and demonstration of life skills 

in the areas of critical thinking and problem solving, communications, citizenship, computation, and technology. 

These are all important in moving the College forward. As the College took what is a bold and dramatic 
step in its future, there was an equal commitment to change arId break old practices of operations including 
updating the chart of accounts to better identifSf allocated resources and types of expenditures, to analyze 
costs. 

In conjunction with our efforts to align the institution around putting students first, there is no goal more 
visible and important to the students and community than the fiscal well-being and transparency of Cowley 
College's financial picture. 

Cowley College is fiscally sound, and wants to he financial prepared for the future. 

Fiscal P!anninR and Budget 

Cowley College remains a fiscally sound intuition, and meets its goal of focusing on student success through 
the integration of the budget development and the strategic planning, which creates a standardized process 
that links strategic priorities and goals with the annual budget. The process was intended to provide a 
consistent approach for instructional and administrative departments to timely prepare the annual budget. 
Throughout fiscal year 2016-2017, the college continued to focus on clearly Jinking instructional, 
departmental, and college activities and initiatives with institutional priorities and goals. As a results, the 
process is reflected in the management's discussion and analysis of financial reporting for fiscal year ending 
June 30,2017. This management's discussion and analysis provides an over-view of the financial highlights 
of the College including comparisons over the past three fiscal years. 

Statement of Net Position 

The Statement of Net Position represents the College's financial position at the end of the fiscal year and 
includes all assets and liabilities of the College. Net  Position is the difference between assets and liabilities, 
which is the College's equity. and serves as the general indicator of financial stability. 

Current assets are those items on an entitys balance sheet that is either cash, a cash equivalent, or 
receivables and inventory that can be converted into cash within one year. Current assets are those assets 
which are available to satisfSf current liabilities. Current liabilities are the College's debts or obligations that 
are due within one year. Current liabilities include short term debt, accounts payable, accrued liabilities and 
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COWLEY COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE AND 
AREA VOCATIONAL-TECW'HCAL SCHOOL 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
(Unaudited) 

other debts. Noncurrent assets include restricted cash and cash equivalent, capital assets, investments and 
other assets not classified as current. Noncurrent liabilities include note payables, bond payables, and other 
long-term commitments. 

The Statement of Net Position includes all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting. The 
accrual basis of accounting is similar to the accounting basis utilized by most private-sector institutions, 
and is used by government entities including institutions of higher educations that adopted GASB 34 & 
GASB 35, and thus, classify themselves as business-type entities. This statement defines the financial 
position of the College. This overview compares the financial position of the College for the past fiscal 
years 2017, 2016, and 2015. 

Statement of Net Position Comparison 
June 30, 2015,2016,2017 

1. - A 

 $39019823 

Total Assets - $3S.'.394 

- $48.1O6.403 

$ 11.224.777 

Total Liabthries $9.233.224 

S17992A5O 

T 27.942.713 

Total Net Position $29.680.024 

S30.457.670 

FY2O1 PY2O16 •Ft2O17 

As noted in the above chart, Total Assets increased by $9.0 million or 23.2%, Total Liabilities increased by 
$6.7 million or 6.0%, and the Total Net Position of the College increased by $2.5 million or 9% from fiscal 
year ending 2015 to fiscal year ending 2017. The primary changes over the past two years included the 
increases in cash proceeds including students' payments, investments of bond proceeds of previous years, 
and specifically the net cash proceeds from the selling of the Certificates of Participation (bonds) in Spring 
2017 to finance the construction of the new Wellington Campus of Cowley College and the associated sales 
tax collections. Additionally, net position increased from the non-cash gift of land, appraised at $1.7 
million, for the Wellington Campus in capital assets. A closer look at each year's changes is noted in the 
below year-over-year comparison. 



COWLEY COUThsTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE AND 
AREA VOCATIONAL-TECHNICAL SCHOOL 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
(Unaudited) 

Statement ofNet Position - Year over Year Change 
Change 

2017 2016 2015 20J6to2017 2015to2016 

ASSETS 

Current Assets $ 23,003,847 $ 14,616,713 $ 13,501,380 $ 8,387,134 $ 1,115,333 
Non-current Assets - Receivables 2,740,695 2,313,247 2,201,844 427,448 111,403 
Non-current Assets - Capital Assets 22,361,86! 21,847,434 23,316,599 514,427 (1,469,165) 

TOTAL ASSETS 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 

OF RESOIJRCES: 

LIABILITIES: 

Current Liabilities 

Noncurrent Liabilities 

TOTAL LJABIILJTIES 

DEFERRED INFLOWS 

OF RESOURCES: 

NET POSITION: 

Investment in Plant, Net 

Restricted - Expendable 

Unrestricted 

TOTAL NET POSITION 

Assets 

$ 48,106,403  $ 38,777,394 $ 39,019,823  $ 9,329,009 $ (242,429) 

$  361,312 $  135,854 $  147,667 $ 225,458 $  (11,813) 

$  3,707,504 $ 2,624,699 $ 4,092,694 $ 1,082,805 $ (1,467,995) 
14,284,646 6,608,525 7,132,083 7,676,121 (523,558) 

$  17,992,150  $ 9,233,224 $ 11,224,777 $ 8,758,926 $ (1,991,553) 

$  17,895 $ -  $ -  $ 17,895 $ - 

$  17,125,881  $ 16,015,870 $ [6,739,398  $ 1,110,0fl  $ (723,528) 

449,130 933,938 282,327 (484,808) 651,611 

12,882,659 12,730,216 10,920,988 152,443 1,809,228 

$  30,457,670  $ 29,680,024 $ 27,942,713  $ 777,646 $ 1,737,311 

In comparing fiscal year 2017 to fiscal year 2016, there increases in unrestricted cash and cash equivalent, 
and short-term investments of approximately $1.3 miflion or 12.1% in which results in the $12.5 million in 
unrestricted cash on-hand included in the Current Assets. The College has no long-term investments. 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents, and short-term investments increased by $7 million or 429.5% to 8.7 
million due to the cash proceeds received for the sale of Certificates of Participation for the Wellington 
Campus and sales taxes collections for repayment of debt service on those bonds. Total cash and cash 
equivalent equates to $2 1.2 miflion. Current account receivables for federal and state grants and contracts 
and students had net sum decrease of 437,805, thus, totaling I million due to the College. Prepaid Expenses 
and Inventories accounted for $724,645 of Current Assets. Non-Current Assets - Students Receivables 
increased by 427,448 to equate to the 2.7 million, net of allowance. Capital assets, net of accumulated 
depreciation, increased by $5 14,427 to equate to $22.3 million for Non-Current Assets - Capital Assets. 

The investment portfolio is highly liquid with 100% of the assets invested in certificate of deposits and 
United States obligations. Funds invested in certificate of deposits and other bank deposits are secured with 
U.S. Treasuries or United States agencies which have the full faith and credit of the United States 
government. Unrestricted and restricted cash and cash equivalent at the close of fiscal year 2017 was $21 .2 



COWLEY COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE AND 
AREA VOCATIONAL-TECHNICAL SCHOOL 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
(Unaud ited) 

million, and accounts for 92.2% of Total Current Assets, and 
44•]% 

 of Total Assets; and is 73.4% of fiscal 
year 2017 earned revenues. 

In comparing fiscal year 2016 to fiscal year 2015, there was an increase of $1.4 million or l2.3% in cash 
and cash equivalent, short-term investments, and long-term investments, which equated to $12.8 million of 
cash and cash equivalent, short-term investments, and long-term investments. This increase was mainLy due 
to the College's effort to decrease spending except for end-of-year projects, which were actually completed 
and paid for in fiscal year 2017. Other spending produced saving because of better negotiation in purchasing 
goods and services, with those savings being invested in higher interest-bearing instruments. The college 
did not have any large dollar purchases within the fiscal since the new student information system was 
purchased in fiscal year ending 2015, and no new bonds as they did in fiscal year 2015. 

Deferred Out/lows of Resources 

The College adopted GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, 
Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position. The College's deferred charge on refunding a debt is 
now reported as a deferred outflow of resources as the amount is deferred and amortized over the life of the 
refunded debt. The College refinanced the 2007 Series-Dorm Revenue Bond with a Certificate of 
Participation to lower the interest rate of the life of the debt and reduce the total debt service payments by 
$349,745 over the next thirteen years. The refinancing savings was $124,040 for fiscal year 2017 and 
$135,854 for fiscal year 2016. For fiscal year 2017, this relates to the pensions as an actuarially. 

Liabilities 

Overall liabilities from 2016 to 2017 increased by $8.7 million namely due to the sale of Certificates of 
Participation to fund the construction of the College's Wellington Campus. 

Overall liabilities from 2015 to 2016 decreased by approximately $1.9 million due to the retirement of the 
Certificate of Participation, Series A, 2008 for the Track, and the refinancing of the Dormitory System 
Revenue Bonds- Series 2007 to Certificate of Participation-Series 2015, Central Avenue Dormitory. In 
2015-2016, the College did not finance any purchases but did engage in better negotiations to decrease 
overall spending. 

Deferred In flows of Resources 

The deferred inflow of resources represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) 
and thus will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. For fiscal year 2017, 
this relates to the pensions as an actuarially. 

Net Position 

As noted in the above chart, Statement of Net Position - Year over Year Change, the largest change from 
fiscal year 2015 to 2017 is in Total Assets and Total Liabilities reflecting the sale of the Certificate of 
Participation and collection of associated sa]es taxes, thus adding cash proceeds to the Total Assets; and 
increasing the corresponding bond payables in Total Liabilities for fiscal year 2017. 

The overall net position of the college continues to be relatively strong, with non-cash revenue gift of land, 
appraised at $1.7 million offset by costs of end-of-year projects (primarily other capital assets and deferred 
maintenance) of approximately $716,000 carried over from fiscal year 2016, resulting in net increase of 
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COW LEY COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE AND 
AREA VOCATIONAL-TECHNICAL SCHOOL 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
(Unaudited) 

$777,646 after adjusting for prior period adjustment of -$86.1 14 for correctl.y reclassifying the amortization 
of premium on bonds payable. The net position of the College stands at $30.4 million for 2017; $29.6 
million for 2016; and $27.9 million for 2015, which reflects the continued strong financial position of the 
college. 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position presents the College's results of 
operations for each fiscal year. Operating revenues are generated from the services provided to students 
and other customers of the College. Operating expenses include those costs incurred in the productions of 
good and services which result in operating revenues, as well as depreciation and amortization. All other 
activity is classified as non-operating revenues, expenses, and gains, and losses. A large portion of the 
revenues including Ad valorem taxes and State appropriation are classified as non-operating revenues. 
Kansas public community colleges may reflect an operating income or loss with the increase or decrease, 
respectively, in net position reflective of all activity. 

Total revenues and total expenses should be considered in assessing the change in the College's financial 
position. When total revenues exceed total expenses, the result is an increase in net position. When the 
reverse occurs, the result is a decrease in net position. Further detail is presented in the Statement of 
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position and notes to the financial statements. 

A summarized comparison of the College's revenues, expenses and changes in net position for the years 
ended June 30, 2017, 2016, and 2015 is presented in the table below. 

Statement ofRevenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 
Change 

2017 
r 

2016 2015 2016to2017 2015to2016 

Operating Revenues 5  14.023,893 S 14,844.967 S 16,500,243 5 (82t,074) S (1,655,276) 

Operating E enses 28,072,947 26,659,683 31,828,332 1,413,264 (5,168,649) 

Operating Loss 

Nonoperating Revenues, Net 

Capita) Grants and (lifts 

Increase (Decrease) 

in Net Position 

$ (14,049,054) 5 (11,814,71611 S (15,328,089) $ (2,234,338)  5 3,513.373 

12,990,761 13,391,353 12,872,355 (400,592) $ 518,998 

1,922.053 170,674 184,802 1,751,379 (14,128) 

5 863,760  S 1,747,311 $ (2,270,932) $ (883,551) $  4,018,243 

In accordance with general accepted accounting principle for fiscal year ending 2017, the College will have 
an increase in net position of $863,760 primarily from increase in gift and non-cash contributions (land 
gift) before adjusting for prior-period adjustment of -$86,1 14. On the surface, it would appear the college 
is operating at a slight loss based on fiscal 2017 revenues being $821,074 million less than fiscal year 2016's 
revenues, and fiscal year 2017 expenses being $1.4 million higher than 2016 fiscal year's expenses, 
However, the costs of end-of-year projects of approximately $700,000 from fiscal year 2016 accounts for 
the primarily increase in expenses, and both revenues and expenses include annual end of year accounting 
entries to ensure the financial report is compliant with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 



COWLEY COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE AND 
AREA VOCATIONAL-TECHNICAL SCHOOL 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
(Unaudited) 

End of year accounting journal entries made in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles 
include: 1) increase in amortization of premiums of Certificate of Participations bond payment of prior 
years, which resulted in recording -$86,1 14 to debt issuance costs (an expense) without a corresponding 
revenue because bond proceeds are recorded as cash and bonds payable on the Statements of Net Position, 
i.e., balance sheet, and the debt issuance costs is paid directly from cash proceeds and recorded as an 
expense on the Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position, i.e., income/]oss statement; 
2) the increase in depreciation and amortization expense of $55,620 with offset recorded in accumu'ated 
depreciation and bond payable on the balance sheet; and 3) increase in accrued vacation and sick leave 
expense of $136,700 due to change in vacation policy that allows employees to accrue more vacation with 
the corresponding offset recorded in accrued compensated absences payable on the balance sheet. 

Revenue by Source 

In accordance with GASB Statements No. 34 and 35, revenues are identified in the Statement of Revenues, 
Expenses, and Changes in Net Position as Operating Revenues and Non-operating Revenues. Operating 
Revenues are remunerations associated with exchanges with students, commonly tuition and fees, 
textbooks, and other materials students purchase for college. Other remunerations cLassified as Operating 
Revenues include federal, state, and Local exchanges associated with students in the form of Pell Grants, 
SEOG, and Federal and Loca' Work study. Non-operating Revenues are those remunerations that are not 
exchanges with students directly but with others based on the College's deliver of education to students. 
Non-operating Revenues include primarily State Appropriations, Ad valorem taxes (local property taxes), 
and other revenues such as investment income and capital gifts. 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
(Unaudited) 

Revenues by Sources 
June 30,2015,2016,2017 

Tiiitiou & Fees. Net  Discounts 

Giants. Contiact & AuiIIiarv 

State App lop 112 lionS 

LociI Property Taces 

$5 084,695 
S4565382 

4345644 

$11415548 
$10279585 

-  9678.249 

SS.4 75 554 
SS $6'S45 

S96L596 

- 
4SO.344 

4 
S524 S-V 

529O232 

.1 $187473 
Gills ud Others -  15365 

$1660986 

___________________________ _________ 
- 

30033614 
Tot2I Revenues L SS4O6994 

$28936707 

FYI5 FY16 UFy 



COWLEY COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE AND 
AREA VOCATIONAL-TECHNiCAL SCHOOL 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
(Unaudited) 

Revenues 

Revenue by Sources 
Change 

2017 206 2015 2016to2017 2015to2016 

OPERAT[NG REVENUES: 

Tuition & Fees, Net ofDiscount 

Grants, Contracts & Auxiliary 

Federal 
State 

Local, Private & Non-governmt'l 
Audliaiy 

Total Grants, Contracts, and Auxiliary 

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 

NONOPERAT[NG REVENUES: 
State Funds: 

Unrestricted 

Restricted 
Total State Funds 

Local Property Taxes: 

Maintenance and Operations 

Debt Service 

Total Local Property Taxes 

Capital Grants and Gifts 

Investnnt incon and others: 
1nvestrrnt Income 

Other- Debt Cost and Interest on Debt 

Total Investrrnt and Others 

TOTAL NONOPERATING 

TOTAL REVENUES  

$  4,345,644  $ 4,565,382 $  5,084,695  $ (219,738) $ (519,313) 

5,34 ,826 5,793,167 6,676,330 (451,341) (883,163) 
212.731 222,505 242,278 (9,774) (19,773) 

380,658 332,010 550,998 48,648 (218,988) 
3,743,034 3,931,903 3,945,942 (188,869) (14,039) 

9,678,249 10,279,585 1 ,4 15,548 (601,336) (1,1 35,963 

14,023,893 14,844,967 16,500,243 (821,074) (1,655,276) 

6,824.296 7,271,484 7,220,017 (447,188) 51,467 

1,137,300 1,196,361 1,255,537 (59,061) (59,176) 
7,961,596 8,467,845 8,475,554 (506,249) (7,709) 

5,290,232 5,247,847 4,870,344 42,385 377,503 

5,290,232 5,247,847 4,870,344 42,385 377,503 

1,922,053 170,674 184,802 1,751,379 (14,128) 

63,260 47,097 43,178 16,163 3,919 

(324,327) (371,436) (40,507) 47,109 (330,929) 

(261,067) (324,339) 2,671 63,272 (327,010) 

4,912,8 14 13,562,027 13,533,371 1,350,787 28,656 

$  28,936,707  $ 28,406,994 $ 30,033,614 $  529,713 $ (1,626,620) 

Total revenues increased $529,713 or 1 .8% for fiscal year 20 17 over fiscal year 20 16. Operating revenues 
decreased $821,074 or 5.5% in fiscal year 2017 compared to fiscal year 2016 namely due to decreases in 
all components: tuition and fees ($219,738), grants and contracts ($412,467), and auxiliary services 
($188,869), resulting from slight decreases in student full-time equivalents (FTE). Non-operating revenues 
including state appropriations, Ad valorem taxes, capital grants and gifts, and investment income increased 
overall by $1.3 million or 10% namely due to the capital gifts from land donation of$ 1.7 million, $447,188 
or 6% Ad valorem taxes (local property taxes) had a slight increase of $42,385; and investment income 
increase by $16,163, and offset by decrease in state appropriations and other state funds, and increases in 
debt issues cost and interest on capital asset-related debt expenses of $47,109. 
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COWLEY COUI"flY COMMUNITY COLLEGE AND 
AREA VOCATONAL-TECHNCAL SCHOOL 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
(Unaudited) 

For fiscal year 2016, total revenues decreased by $1.6 million or 5.5% namely due to decreases in all 
categories of the operating revenues; tuition and fees ($519,313), grant and contracts ($1.1 million), and 
auxiliary services ($14,039), and in spite of the increase in non-operating revenues of local property taxes 
of $377,503. 

Expenses 

The schedules below provide a three-year historical record of the use of funds by natural and functional 
classification. The expenses reported include both unrestricted and restricted funds, and are on the accrual 
basis. 

Operating Expenses by Natural Classification 
June 30. 2015, 2016,2017 

S14Ol4.646 
Salaries and Benefits - - $12:719230 

$13.lSMl6 

Departmental Expenses 

Scholarsbips and Grants 

Deprecia lion and 
Amortization 

Auxilars Enterprises 

Total Expenses  

A 

 $6O'3O 
55460,875 

- 57,376.779 

55,088,410 
A _______ S. 6.09 
53,241,299 

$L686964 
5L354.070 
$1409,690 

'•- -i 53,387,982 
A 53.389.199 

- 52,8 56,363 

- $31,828,332 
526.659,685 

$28072947 

9FY15 FY16 •FY17 
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COWLEY COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE AND 
AREA VOCATIONAL-TECHNICAL SCHOOL 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
(Unaudited) 

Expenses 

Operating E'.penses by Natur4l Class ificatiwi Change 
%of °hof %of 

2017 Total 2016 Total 2015 Total 2016w2017 2015to2016 

Salaries arid Benefits 13,i&,l6 46.98% $ 12,719,230 47.71% $ 14.014,646 44.03% $ 469.586 (1,295,416) 

Departrneival E>peuises 7,376,779 26.28% 5,460,875 20.48% 7,650,330 24.04% 1,915,904 (2,189,455) 

Scholarshipsand Gr4nts 3,24L299 11.55% 3736,3O9 14.OL% 5,088,410 15.99% (495,010) (1,351101) 

Deprcciaton and Amcrt. 1,409,690 5.02% 1,354,070 5.0 % 1,686,964 5.30% 55,620 (332,S94) 

Au>dlary thiterprises 2.856,363 10.17% 3.389,199 12.7L% 3,387,982 10.64% (532.836) 1,217 

Total E enses S2S,072,947 !OO.00% $ 26,659,683 OO.00% 31,828,332 100.000/u  $ 14I3,2&4 S (5,168,649) 

Oper4ling E,enses by Functional CJasiflca(ion Change 

%of %of 

20(7 Total 2G16 Total 20(5 Total 2G16io20l7 20l5t2O16 

InstmcLori $ 7,417,395 26.42% $ 6,76l,15 25.36% $ 7,414,723 23.30% $ 656,244 $ (653,572) 

Academic Support 74',541 2.67% 691,565 2.59% 749,047 2.35% $ 57,976 $ (57,482) 

Student Services 4,489,301 15.99% 4,108,330 15.41% 4,421,177 13.89% $ 380,971 $ (32.847) 

hisdtutinaL Support 3,665,563 C 3.06% 3,016,41g 11.31% 4,525,547 14.22% $ 649,145 $ (,5O9,129) 

KPE1S Contribution 1,137,3(X) 4.05% J,I96,36 4.49% 1,255,537 3.94% $ (59,061) $ (59,176) 

Plant Operitioris and Maint. 3,lO6495 1 L .07'3'o 2,406,280 9.03% 3,298,945 10.36% $ 700,215 S (892,665) 

Deprccation 1 4O9,69O 5.02% 1,354,070 5.08% 1.686,964 5.30% $  55,620 (33294) 

Scho1arship/Grants 3,24) ,299 it .55% 3,736,309 14.01% 5,088,410 15.99% $ (495,010) $ (1,352101) 
Audliaiy Enterprises 2,856,363 10i7% 3S9I9 2.7I% 3,387,982 10.64% $ (532,36) 1,2)7 

Tota' E'ense. $28,072,947 100.00% '$ 2 59683 l(X).(X)% 'S 31,828,332 l0O.)% S 1,413,264 $ (5,I68649) 

Operating expenses increased in fiscal year 2017 by Sl.4 or 5.3%. The increases in spending include the 
cost of living raise of 2,5% given to all full-time employees and accounting for approximately $220,000, 
and slight increase in employees' headcount and the resulting increase accrual of employees' vacation and 
sick expenses accounting for approximately $203,586 including the college's portion of social security 
benefits. The residual increases in spending of$l.l mil'ion comes from increases in spending in other goods 
and servkes in all departments including instructional materials, annual contracts and maintenance 
agreements, outsourcing of IT services to assist in the migration from the old SIS to new SIS (S165,000) 
and primarily end-of-year projects in Plant Operations - renovations, deferred maintenance, and upgrading 
facilities ($700,000) carried over from fiscal year 2016. Scholarships and Grants, and Auxiliary Enterprises 
had decreases in costs. 

Operating expenses decreased in fiscal year 2016 by $5.1 million or 16% in every expense category except 
auxiliary services compared to fiscal year 2015 namely due to reduced spending of the new SIS system 
(most of those costs occurred in 2015 until the migration in 2017), stabilized human resources (reduced 
staff turnover), and better negotiation for other goods and services. 

Statement of Cash flows 

The Statement of Cash Flows provide information about the Sources of cash and the use of cash n the 
operations of the College. The Statement of Cash Flows help determine the College's ability to meet its 
obligations as they come due and the impact of external financing. The Statement of Cash Flows 
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COWL.EY COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE AND 
AREA VOCATIONAL-TECHNICAL SCHOOL 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
(Unaudited) 

summarizes cash inflows and outflows by operating activities, noncapital financing activities, capital 
financing activities and investing activities. 

Future Outlook 

Cowley County Community College (College) looks forward to its brightest future, and the continued 
investment in students to make an impact in the economy in the South Central Region of Kansas and 
beyond. The College impacts students, the regional economy, and taxpayers in a number of significant 
ways. The community, as a whole, benefits from increased job and investment opportunities, higher 
business revenues, greater availability of public funds, and an eased tax burden. Taxpayers benefit from a 
growing economy and lower social costs. Going forward, the College will continue its vital role in training 
the region's workforce, ensuring that the area can compete in today's global marketplace. 

The College is in the third and last year of the 201 5-2018 Strategic Plan, and look forward to developing 
the next strategic plan for fiscal years 2018 through 2021. Like the current strategic plan, the college will 
continue to advance the mission and vision of the college in supporting students attaining academic and life 
skills. The College will continue to obtain partnerships with Kansas' four-year public higher education 
institutions to ensure students' cost of attendance is affordable, and like the one with Fort Hays State - the 
$15,000 bachelor degree, in which the College accepted Governor Brownback's affordability challenge. 
The Collegejust signed a 2+2 partnership agreement with Wichita State University for students to obtain a 
Bachelor degree in Engineering in which the first two years of the program is housed at the Mulvane Center. 
This partnership is projected to save students approximately $95,000 in cost of attendance. 

Additionally, the College entered into a lease with the option to purchase the Bloomenshine facilities in 
Mulvane, and will fully develop a facility master plan for that campus in additional to the campuses in 
Arkansas City and Wellington. The College is in Phase I of construction for the Wellington campus after 
securing $8.7 million in Certification of Participation (bonds) to construct that campus. Those bonds will 
be paid from the collection of sales taxes (5.005) referendum that was approved in the November 2016 
Election. The sales tax is currently bringing in approximately $105,000 monthly, and projected to bring in 
approximately $14 million over the ten-year period of taxation. Additionally, the College will operate that 
campus with those revenues in addition to the revenues earned through tuition and fees charged to those 
students attending that campus. Cowley College anticipates an increase in student headcount by at least 500 
students when the campus opens in Fall 2018. The Short Family donated 18 acres of land valued at $1.7 
million with the option to purchase up to ten additional acres within a 10-year period at a price of$ 1.00 per 
square foot. The family was granted the naming rights to the general education building, thus, it is named; 
the Short General Education Building. Additionally, the College is building a technology building to house 
nunierous technology and workforce programs, which will be Innovation and Technology Building, and is 
available for a naming right. 

In addition to developing the strategic plan and facilities' master plan, the management is working with the 
Board of Trustees in developing the first financial plan for the institution, and updating and developing new 
Board policies. The Board recently approved the College's Financial Stability Policy, which ensures the 
college is financially stable, and ability to meet the financial obligations of the College; and the Acquisition 
and Disposal of College Property Policy as the first step in developing the financiaJ plan. The next step in 
the financial plan is identif'ing the besttools to measure the financial performance and health of the college. 

Cowley County Community College's outlook for the foreseeable future is very positive. 
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COWLEY COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE AND 
AREA VOCATIONAL-TECHNICAL SCHOOL 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
(Unaudited) 

Contacting the College's Financial Management 

This management's discussion and analysis was designed to provide the College's citizens, taxpayers, 
students, investors, and creditors with a general review of the College's finances and to demonstrate the 
College's accountability for the funds it receives. If you have questions about this management's discussion 
and analysis, financial statements, or need additional financial information, please contact Dr. Gloria J. 
Walker at 125 South Second Street, Arkansas City, Kansas 67005 or Gloria.walker@cowley.edu. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Dr. Gloria J. Walker, MBA, CPA 
Vice President of Finance and 
Administration 
Cowley County Community College 
December 

6th 
 2017 
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



Cowley County Community CoiJege and Area Vocational-Technical School 

Statements of Net Position 
June 30, 2017 

Cowley County 
Community College 

215,777 
89,878 
75,350 
68,125 

12,882,659 

30,457,670 

$ 48,467,715 

ASSETS 

Cunent Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Restricted cash and cash equiva]ents 
Investments 
Receivables - federal and state grants and contracts 
Receivables - students 
Receivables - CCF 
Receivables - other 
Prepaid expenses 
Inventories 

Total cunent assets 

Noncurrent Assets 
Investments 
Receivables - students 
Receivables - other 
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 
Beneficial interest in trusts 

Total noncunent assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Deferred charge on refunding 
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension plan investment 
Changes in proportionate share of contributions 

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

LIABILITIES 
Cunent Liabilities 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Deposits held in custody for others 
Accrued interest payable 
Compensated absences payable 
Certificates of Participation 

Total cunent liabilities 

Noncurrent Liabilities 
Compensated absences payable 
Other postemployment benefits obligation 
Net pension liability 
Certificates of Participation 

Total noncunent liabilities 
TOTAL LIABILITIES 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Differences between expected and actual experience 
Changes in assumptions 
Changes in proportionate share of contributions 

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 
Restricted for: 

Nonexpendable - endowments 
Expendable: 

Capital outlay and construction 
Restricted funds 
Debt retirement 
Projects 

Unrestricted 

TOTAL NET POSITION 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these fmancial statements. 

Component Unit 
CC Foundation 

$ 395,750 

2,136,111 

13,750 

2,545,611 

3,038,722 

4,625 

473,083 

3,516,430 

6.062.041 

$ 6,062,041 

$ 1,048 

1,048 

1,048 

3,176,194 

2,884,799 

6,060,993 

$ 6,062,041 

16 

$ 12,515,786 
8,712,107 

125,564 
922,674 

1,048 
2,023 

274,414 
450,231 

23,003,847 

2,740,695 

22,361,861 

25,102,556 

48,106.403 

124,040 
22,922 

214,350 

361,312 

$ 48,467,715 

$ 334,740 
1,339,534 

75,350 
359,238 

1,598,642 
3,707,504 

9,327 
1,521,752 

253,817 
12,499,750 
14,284,646 
17,992,150 

11,982 
459 

5,454 

17,895 

17,125,881 



7,417,395 
749,541 

4,489,301 
3,665,563 
1,137,300 
3,106,495 
1,409,690 
3,241,299 

1,717,396 
1,021,376 

117,591 

28,072,947 

(14,049,054) 

6,824,296 
1,137,300 
5,290,232 
1,760,000 

63,260 
(137,445) 
(186,882) 

14,750,761 

701,707 
162,053 

863,760 

524,651 

524,651 

(426,766) 

487,050 
454,235 

941,285 

514,519 

514,519 

Cowley County Coummunity College and Area Vocational-Technical School 

Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 
For the Year End June 30, 2017 

Cowley County Component Unit 
Community College CC Foundation 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Student tuition and fees 

Less allowances for institutional scholarships 
Less allowances for federal grants 

Net student source revenue 
Federal sources 
State sources 
Auxiiiary enterprises: 

Residential life 
Campus store (net of sales discounts) 
Other auxiliary enterprises 

Sales and services 
Other operating revenues 

Total operating revenues 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Educational and General 

Instruction 
Academic support 
Student services 
Institutional support 
KPERS contribution paid directly by the State of Kansas 
Operations and maintenance of plant 
Depreciation and amortization 
Scholarships and grants 

Auxiliary Enterprises 
Residential life 
Campus store 
Other auxiliary enterprises 

Total operating expenses 

Operating income (loss) 

NONOPERATNG REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
State appropriations 
State contribution directly to the KPERS retirement system 
Local sources 
Private grants and gifts 
Investment income 
Debt issue costs 
Interest on capital asset-related debt 

Net nonoperating revenues (expenses) 

Income (loss) before other revenues 
Capita] grants and gifts 

Net increase (decrease) in net position 

$ 7,178,573 $ 

(664,823) 
(2,168,106) 

4,345,644 
5,341,826 

212,731 

2,283,670 
1,274,973 

184,391 
24,799 

355,859 97,885 

14,023,893 97,885 

NET POSITION 
Net position - beginning of year 29,680,024 5,546,474 

Prior period adjustment (86,114) 

Net position - end of year $ 30,457,670 $ 6,060,993 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 17 



Cowley County Community College and Area Vocational-Technical School 

Statement of Cash Flows 
For the Year End June 30, 2017 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Student tuition and fees 
Grants and contracts 
Sales and services of auxiliary enterprises 
Other receipts 
Payments to employees for salaries and benefits 
Payments to suppliers 
Loans issued to students 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
State appropriations 
County and local approprialions 

Net cash flows provided (used) by noncapital financing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Purchases of capital assets 
Proceeds from debt 
Principal paid on debt 
Interest paid on debt 
Capital gifts and grants 
Debt issue costs 

Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Interest on investments 

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents - end of year 

RECONCILIATION OF NET OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) TO 
NET CASH USED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Operating loss 
Depreciation and amortization expense 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities: 

Receivables, net 
Prepaid expenses 
Inventories 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Accrued employee benefits 
Deposits held in custody for others 
KPERS liability net of deferred inflows/outflows 
Employee benefits paid directly by State of Kansas 

Net cash provided (used) in operating activities 

NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL, AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
Land donation 

S 3,949,460 
1,083,619 
3,743,034 

379,610 
(13,188,816) 
(12,598,278) 

5,016,653 
(11,614,718) 

6,824,296 
5,290,232 

12,114,528 

(175,946) 
8,908,976 
(735,000) 
(164,269) 
162,053 

(137,445) 

7,858,369 

63,260 

63,260 

8,421,439 

12,806,454 

$ 21,227,893 

(14,049,054) 
1,409,690 

10,358 
(274,414) 
(129,086) 
(72,691) 
249,554 
138,125 
(34,500) 

1,137,300 

$ (11,614,718) 

$ 1,760,000 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 18 



c;ncn County Cumwunity College and Arui Vucatiojuil-Tvcbaical Sthuul 

Notes to }inaneial StatenuerN 

Jij,w30, 2017 

1. Summary *1 Signii.cnt it.cuiinting FulLis 

Caw!:y Ccnty oix.moniy Cnlcgc rid Arra Voatonal-Tcehn'cs Scionl Ct): CoIIegeJ is a r.:ubIi:  flntar p-
wcondauy ed:uational intTjIir, <'ranized under tie :aws ul lLe Sta: of Kanse% and is govccued by an ticcicd Board 
of J nistee.. With :noze than 70 m4jors and de ee possih:lities, ttr College prepajts students cc tanstbr cc a fnur-ycar 
puogrant OTto entcrtt: workfnrcc witl' a twn-yearjnl:-Tca4r devee. 

fl:e acc ntiutg and cpoiticug policto of ltt CoLlege :tlntth to the cccupscuyiug Iuuunc:al swtenitois conloria to 
Lccountine prbtciplcs 'ttnlly ep:d to lix United Sires ot' Ajierica (GAAY} applicabLe to puIic üisdtuiions 
cnagcd only it busizs-pc acvic  adoptcd y te Onvcrnrncttal Aecoouring Slandards Bcsrd (CIASR). Tbc 
OASR is tl:e accpd srstc1ard-nflig body Pr escabLi.tiui8 aovtwIeila1 a4couinring and (ina,tiaL repoiCng principles. 

(a) Reporting k:aio 

Ecr :imnci4 rvpurtkç purposes, the Colieçe is considered a special-purpose ovcrr.nicn: cnaed onLy it bashess 
Iya aclivitics. Lt is governed y a Boar. of Tiustees clectcd by tho votcrs of Cow:ey Cointç lCsns.;. Ft i.; Jcally 
cr:arai: and flsca:Ly indcpcnden nt otha sia ml Inoal goveutnicnt'. The accnrnr:any!ng flianciat stacenienis 

pre,ent the activitics of tite College (che priunny ovevj,ienc) and ic 1,cmtc1y rresented cir.oJLerI: flnir. The 
Comp)iScit flutit discussed beluw is included ii: ihe CoLLq ,eporlii eiti beiaist cC the sgnflcance <C irs 
Enanciid rvLatiucusi:ip with the CotLcge. The inincb daLa oethe CuJlegs con:pucuenc wilt i ciiscctttly pztccu:ed 
in a sepamte cotwnn to cmp]laiize chat it is a leujalli scpr.te cui:ity. 

CwLey Collese FQtu:dlaLjon (Poundation is a :e Ly septae, 1aPe.npr conpo:Ltru: tunic of the College Ihe 
1 ouiid8lioi ac pth,uudty n a fjj:d-rakizi or&aiLizaition to tu,pkcnenL Ike reources Lkt art avañahk to lte 
ColIqe in uppOrt of its programs. KtJ:out LL CoLlege dors not cuculroJ the tkwn or nuount of receipts Durn 
the Fouzr.thlion, IF.c T.taiclity of reotrctJ or income thejeon. that bc Fouzr.thlion holds md invest, are resLricled 
tn the accivitirs oetltc college y the donon. Becau.'.liese rcsflictrd resoirces kcJd t the Poundatie,t can oily 
be oed by, or mr tte berefit o the Co:lege, tt: Fouidation is eonsidcrcd a enml:onent nutit ofchc Collesc and is 
dicrtLrJy prter3ed o hw CoLlege' iuu'icia stktecnenb. For jueici31 retx'uting purpose oily. Ow Pux1ztins 
scateme,l, of inancial position and activ,tir arr btcludcd in tht CoLrge ituc.nia1 mLtrnenLs iejitir(l by 

cac:slly scccp!cd  cotsLi:I piinop!e. fri puJic ccJ!ccs at tnivcmiri:s 

Per tna&iaL rcpojting pnse; the Fn'na:inn fruJln', the provsinns nt tltr Piianci,l Accortisig S-sndt.rds 
Bnard (FASB) whith cscahEsh th: tiaanc!,l reponin standards the a nonpofi: or aninhiors. M azch, ctnau 
rcvcnujc rccogtition criteria ac prcsentadcit teacur:s are dittrent torn GASB mventr Jecognition cri:eJi avJ 

r.resenration f njr:s Wift th cxoct,tioit ofuieccssar. pr:sencatior. adjtsthicns, nn modifurstions tave hen iiae 
to lLe Fowidatimis EnaJLcia :nferaiatinn. Conipl::e financial scatcmcnts tor the Fouia:ini sn ho nlxain:d from 
the J uundatiuces bus irwss office. 

(b1 Mevisuzemeni Thicus, Bath of .4c:ccnnsiing, crndFinwsc:ial .csusemeni The, e.niation 

Tue College's runanci3l sucenencs have 1en ,Tes:it4d tiutg the ecotornc rcsnjrs rneutrcnicic fncL; and the 
accccal baais ot'a ointiq. A:l assets and Liabil.ties assoéa:ed vEt LJtr operation of the thlrge an imluded or. 
lte Iace,nencef net ,o3tiofl, Revemis arc rceopized 'st.en nrr.:d:  and cxtcnscs Ie rccord:d 'Vieu aaolIip.tio. 

t.as  been tncuaed. crgard:s uf the timir. of cekLrd cash Ilosn All igguiflcit interknd tcacuactiucu J:ave beeit 
:Bunirxed. 
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

(b) Measurement Focus, Basis ofAccounting, and Financial Statement Presentation Vontinue41 

Nonexchange transactions, in which the College receives value without directly giving equal value in return, 
include property taxes; federal, state, and local grants; state appropriations, and other contributions. Property taxes 
are recognized in the year for which they are levied. State appropriations are recognized as revenue in the year in 
which the appropriation is first made available for use. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenues as 
soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 

The College does not present budgetary comparison information in the basic fmancial statements or as required 
supplemental information. This is because the College reports as a business-type activity and does not have the 
reporting requirements related to major funds. The College does present budgetary comparison information in the 
supplementary information to these financial statements. 

(c) Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position 

Deposits and Investments 

Kansas Statute (KSA) 12-1675 authorizes the College to invest monies in time deposits, certificates of deposits, 
repurchase agreements consisting of obligations insured by the U.S. government or any agency thereof, U.S. 
Treasury bills or notes with maturities not exceeding two years, and the Kansas Municipal Investment Pool. 
Investments are reported at fair value based on quoted market prices. 

Cash resources of the individual funds (except for any proceeds of revenue bonds, which are separately invested) 
are combined to form a pool of cash and temporary investments that are managed by the College. Investments of 
the pooled accounts consist primarily of certificates of deposits and treasury securities. Interest income earned is 
allocated to various funds based upon statutory guidelines. 

Cash maintained in escrow accounts specifically designated for bond repayments and reserves are classified as 
restricted cash. 

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the College considers all investments with original maturities of one 
year or less to be cash equivalents. 

Accounts Receivable 

Accounts receivable consists of tuition and fee charges to students, amounts due from the federal, state, and local 
governments in coimection with reimbursement of allowable expenditures made pursuant to the College's grants 
and contracts, and other receivables. Accounts receivable are recorded net of estimated uncollectible amounts. 

Inventories 

inventories of the campus store are stated at the lower of cost or market, cost being determined principally on the 
basis of average cost. Campus store inventories consist of books, clothing, and supplies. Inventories have been 
adjusted for obsolete merchandise. They are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when 
purchased. 

Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which include property, plant, and equipment, are recorded at cost at the date of acquisition, or their 
estimated fair market value at the date of donation, in the case of gifts. For equipment, the College's capitalization 
policy includes all items with a unit cost of $5,000 or more, and an estimated useful life of greater than three years. 
Renovations to buildings and land improvements that significantly increase the value or extend the useful life of the 
structure are capitalized. Routine repairs and maintenance are charged to operating expense in the yeas in which 
the expense was incurred. 

20 



Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

(c) Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position (Continued) 

Capital Assets 

Depreciation is computed on assets having a value of more than $5,000 using the straight-line method over the 
estimated useful lives of the assets. Depreciation is not allocated to the various functions of the College but is 
reported separately on these fmancial statements. 

Estimated useful lives used for calculating depreciation are as follows: 

Buildings and improvements - 20 to 30 years 
Equipment and furniture - 5 to 15 years 

Federal Financial Assistance Projj'rams 

Federal programs are audited in accordance with Title 2 U.s. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, 
Unform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal A wards. 

Compensated Absences Payable 

Employee vacation and sick leave pay is accrued at year end for financial statement purposes. The liability is 
recorded in the statement of net assets and a related expense is recorded in the statement of revenues, expenses, and 
changes in net position. 

For vacation pay, the amount is based on leave earned, but not taken. Employees are allowed to cany over a 
limited number of vacation days from year to year. 

Unused sick leave is accumulated up to a specified maximum number of days. Upon separation from the College, 
the compensation is for one-half of the accumulated sick leave to a maximum of 100 days paid at the rate of current 
pay, (1/2 of monthly salary or hourly rate). 

Noncurrent Liabilities 

Noncurrent liabilities include (1) principal amounts of bonds payable, certificates of participation payable, related 
premiums and discounts, loans payable, and capital lease obligations with contractual maturities greater than one 
year; and (2) estimated amounts for the early retirement benefits, compensated absences, other postemployment 
benefits, and net pension liabilities not anticipated to be paid within the next fiscal year. 

Pensions 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Kansas 
Public Employees Retirement 5ystem (KPERS) and additions to/deductions from KPER5's fiduciary net position 
have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by KPERS. For this purpose, benefit payments 
(including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit 
terms. Investments are reported at fair value. 

Deferred Outflow/In/lows of Resources 

In addition to assets, the statement of fmancial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred 
outflow of resources. This separate fmancial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a 
consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of 
resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The Col]ege has two items that qualifj for reporting in this category. 
The first is the deferred charge on refunding resulting from the difference in the carrying value of refunded debt 
and its reacquisition price. This amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or 
original debt. The second is the deferred outflows reLated to pensions as actuarially determined and explained in 
Note 8. 
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

(c) Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position (Continued) 

Deferred Out/low/Inflows of Resources 

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred 
inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflow of resources, represents an 
acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources 
(revenue) until that time. The College has one item that qualifies for reporting in this category. It is the deferred 
inflows relating to pensions as actuarially determined and explained in Note 8. 

Net Position 

The College's net positions are classified as follows: 

Net investment in capital assets - This represents the College's total investment in capital assets, net of 
accumulated depreciation and reduced by outstanding debt obligations related to those capital assets. To the extent 
debt has been incurred but not yet expended for capital assets, such amounts are not included as a component of net 
investment in capital assets. 

Restricted net position - nonexpendable - Restricted nonexpendable net assets consist of endowment and similar 
type funds in which donors or other outside sources have stipulated, as a condition of the gift instrument, that the 
principal is to be maintained in perpetuity, and invested for the purpose of producing present and future income, 
which may either be expended or added to principal. 

Restricted net position - expendable - Restricted expendable net assets include resources in which the College is 
legally or contractually obligated to spend resources in accordance with restrictions imposed by external third 
parties. 

Unrestricted net position - Unrestricted net assets represent resources derived from student tuition and fees, state 
appropriations, and sales and services of auxiliary enterprises. These resources are used for transactions relating to 
the educational and general operations of the College, and may be used at the discretion of the governing board to 
meet current expenses for any purpose. 

Net position flow assumption 

Sometimes the College will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted (e.g., restricted bond or grant 
proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted net position and 
unrestricted net position in the fmancial statements, a flow assumption must be made about the order in which the 
resources are considered to be applied. It is the Colleges policy to consider restricted net position to have been 
depleted before unrestricted net position is applied. 

Classification of Revenues 

The College has classified its revenues as either operating or nonoperating revenues according to the fo]lowing 
criteria: 

Operating revenues - Operating revenues include activities that have the characteristics of exchange 
transactions, such as (I) student tuition and fees, net of scholarship allowances, (2) sales and services of 
auxiliary enterprises, and (3) most federal, state and local grants and contracts. 

Nonoperating revenues - Nonoperating revenues include activities that have the characteristics of 
nonexchange transactions, such as gifts and contributions, and other revenue sources such as state and county 
appropriations and thvestment income. 



1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

(c) Assels, Liabililies, and Ne! Posi!ion (Con/in ned) 

Scholars/zip Allowances 

Student tuition and fee revenues, and certain other revenues from students, are reported net of scholarship 
allowances in the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position. Scholarship allowances are the 
differences between the stated charge for goods and services provided by the College, and the amount that is paid 
by students and/or third parties making payments on the student's behalf. Certain governmental grants, such as 
PELL, Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grants (SEOG), and other federal, state or nongovernmental 
programs, are recorded as either operating or nonoperating revenues in the College's financial statements. To the 
extent that revenues from such programs are used to satisfy tuition and fees and other student charges, the College 
has recorded a scholarship allowance. 

Use of Esthnales 

The preparation of fInancial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported 
amounts of revenues and expenses during that reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Proper/v Tax Informatton 

Collection of current year property tax by the County Treasurer is not completed, apportioned or distributed to the 
various subdivisions until the succeeding year, such procedure being in conformity with governing Kansas statutes. 
Consequently, Current year property taxes receivable, which are not available as a resource that can be used to 
finance the current year operations of the College, are offset by deferred revenue for control purposes. A sixty-day 
period is used for revenue recognition. 

The County Appraiser is responsible for assessment of all taxable property within Cowley County. The County 
Treasurer computes the annual tax arid issues the tax bills to all taxpayers. Property taxes are collected by the 
County Treasurer, who remits to the College its respective share of the tax collections. Property taxes become a 
lien against all property on November 1st. Taxpayers have the option of paying in full, or in two installments. The 
installment dates are December20 and May 10. 

2. Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability 

(a) Biidgeiary Information 

Kansas statutes require that an annual operating budget be legally adopted for the general fund, special revenue 
funds (unless specifically exempted by statute), debt service funds, and enterprise funds. The statutes provide for 
the following sequence and timetable in the adoption of the legal annual operating budget: 

1. Preparation of the budget for the succeeding fiscal year on or before August 1st. 
2. Publication in locai newspaper of the proposed budget and notice of public hearing on the budget on or before 

August 5th. 
3. Public hearing on or before August 15th, but at least ten days after publication of notice of hearing. 
4. Adoption of the final budget on or before August 25th. 

The College's legal level of budget control is at the fund level. Kansas statutes allow for the governing body to 
increase the originally adopted budget for previously unbudgeted increases in revenue other than ad vaiorem 
property taxes. To do this, a notice of public hearing to amend the budget must be published in the local 
newspaper. At least ten days after publication, the hearing may be held and the governing body may amend the 
budget at that time. There were no such budget amendments for this year. 
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2. Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability (Continued) 

(a) Budgetary Information (Continued) 

Kansas statutes permit transferring budgeted amounts between line items within an individual fund. However, 
such statutes prohibit expenditures in excess of the total amount of the adopted budget of expenditures of 
individual funds. 

All legal annual operating budgets are prepared using the regulatory basis of accounting. Regulatory receipts are 
recognized when cash is received. Expenditures include disbursements, accounts payable, and encumbrances. 
Encumbrances are commitments for future payment and are supported by a document evidencing the commitment, 
such as a purchase order or contract. All unencumbered appropriations (legal budget expenditure authority) lapse at 
year end. Encumbered appropriations are not re-appropriated in the ensuing year's budget but are carried forward 
until liquidated or canceled. Accordingly, the data presented in the budgetary comparison schedules differs from 
the data presented in the financial statements prepared in accordance with GAAP. The reconciliations are 
presented on the face of the budgetary comparison schedules. 

A legal operating budget is not required for current restricted funds, capital project funds, trust funds, and some 
special revenue funds. Spending in funds which are not subject to the legal annual operating budget requirement is 
controlled by federal regulations, other statutes, or by the use of internal spending limits established by the 
governing body. 

(b) Cash-Basis Law (KSI4 1 0-1113) 

Kansas municipalities are subject to the cash-basis law as stated in KSA 10-1 113. Certain sub-funds of the 
Restricted Funds have negative unencumbered cash balances at June 30, 2017, which is allowable under KSA 12-
1663. The funds will be reimbursed in the following fiscal year from federal grants, state grants and other contracts 
for expenditures incurred by the College. This combined receivable has been recognized for GAAP purposes on 
these fmancial statements. 

Deposits and Investments 

As of June 30, 2017, the College had cash and cash equivalents as listed below: 

Deposits in fmancial banking institutions 
Certificates of deposit 

Total cash and cash equivalents 

Deposits in financial banking institutions - bond proceeds 

Total restricted cash and cash equivalents 

Combined cash and cash equivalents 

The College did not have any activity in investment-type assets. 

$  4,678,148 
7,837,637 

12,515,786 

8,712,107 

8,712,107 

$ 21,227,893 

The College's policies relating to deposits and investments are governed by various Kansas Statutes (KSA). Those 
statutes specifi the type of deposits and investments as well as the securing of those deposits and investments. 

Interest rate risk - Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of 
an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes 
in market interest rates. In accordance with KSA 12-1675, the College manages its exposure to interest rate fluctuations 
by limiting all time investments to maturities of less than two years. 
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Deposits and Investments (Continued) 

Credit risk— State law limits the amount of credit risk by restricting governments to specific investment types as listed in 
KSA 12-1675. The College's practice is to place idle funds in certificates of deposits and United States obligations. 

Custodial credit risk - The custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository 
financial institution, a government will not be able to recover deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities 
that are in the possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the 
failure of the counterparty to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of investment or collateral 
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. KSA 9-1402 and 9-1405 requires that governments obtain 
security for all deposits. The College manages its custodial credit risk by requiring the financial institutions to grant a 
security interest in securities held by third-party custodial banks. Monies in the Kansas Municipal Investment Pool are 
not required to have pledged securities. As of June 30, 2017, the College was not exposed to custodial credit risk with 
its deposits or investments. 

Concentration of credit risk - This is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government's investment in a 
single issuer. The College manages this risk by placing funds with fmancial institutions only after contacting all eligible 
institutions in the taxing area. 

Component unit - Investments of the Cowley College Foundation consists of mutual funds, treasury obligations, 
certificates of deposits, and other investments. These investments are managed by the Finance Committee of the 
Foundation. These types of investments are not regulated by Kansas Statutes. These investments are subject to all 
normal market risks. 

Capital Assets 

Following are the changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2017: 

Beginning (Decrease) Ending 
Balance Increases Adjustments Balance 

4. 

3. 

- 42,469,170 

= 4,884,339 

= 47,353,509 

42,469,170 - 
4,708,394 175,945 

47,177,564 175,945 

- (24,983,130) 

= (4,387,047) 

= (29,370,177) 

17,983,332 

(23,759,367) (1,223,763) 
(4,189,292) (197,755) 

(27,948,659) (1,421,518) 

19,228,905 (1,245,573) 

Non-depreciable capital assets 
Land 

Depreciable capital assets 
Improvements 
Equipment 

Total depreciable capital assets 

Less accumulated depreciation 
Improvements 
Equipment 

Total accumulated depreciation 

Total depreciable capital assets (net) 

Total capital assets, net 

$ 2,618,529 $ 1,760,000 $ -  $ 4,378,529 

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2017, is $1,421,518. 
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Beginning Payments! Ending Current 
Balance Additions Reductions Balance Portion 

S  1,640,000 S - $ 
645,000 - 

3,620,000 - 
- 8,710,000 

(43,057) 285,090 
231,866 136,699 

1,408,898 225,854 
68,940 184,877 - 

$ 1,425,000 $ 
325,000 

3,420,000 
8,710,000 

218,391 
368,565 

1,521,752 
253,817 - 

215,000 
320,000 
200,000 

23,642 

113,000 

220,000 
325,000 
265,000 
765,000 

23,642 
359,238 

$  7,571,647 $  9,542,520 S 871,642 $  16,242,525 5 1,957,880 

5.  Long-Term Liabilities 

The following is a summary of long-term liability transactions for the year ended June 30, 2017: 

Certificates of participation 
Refunding certificate - indoor sports 
Refunding certificate - student services 
Certificate of Participation - Series 2015 
Certificate of Participation - Series 2017 
Premium on certificates 

Compensated absences 
Post-employment heakhcare 
Net pension liability 

Total long-term liabilities 

The compensated absences, postemployment healthcare benefits, and the net pension liability are generally liquidated by 
the General Fund. The certificates of participation will be paid through revenues generated through the various auxiliary 
enterprise funds and the General Fund. 

(a) Refunding - Certificates of Participation Series 2015 

The College issued the Certificates of Participation Series 2015. The original issue amount was $3,620,000, due in 
annual principal installments ranging from $265,000 to $360,000 through year 2028. Interest rates vary from 2.50% to 
3.45%. 

The remaining debt service requirement for the Certificates of Participation - Series 2015 is as follows: 

Year Ending 

6!30!20 18 
6!30!20 19 
6!3 0!2020 
6!30!202 1 
6!30!2022 

6/30/23 - 6/30/27 
6!30!28 - 6!30!29 

Total 

(b) Indoor Sports Facility 

Principal Interest Total 
$  265,000 $  92,377 $ 357,377 

275,000 85,628 360,628 
285,000 78,628 363,628 
295,000 71,377 366,377 
300,000 63,940 363,940 

1,640,000 91,160 1,831,160 
360,000 6,210 366,210 

$ 3,420,000 $  589,320 $ 4,009,320 

The College issued the Student Union Indoor Sports Facility, Certificates of Participation Series A, 2011. The 
original issue amount was $2,660,000, due in annual principal installments ranging from 5220,000 to $255,000 
through year 2023. Interest rates vary from 2.60% to 3.60%. 

The annual debt service requirements for the Indoor Sports Facility are as follows: 

Year Ending 

6!30!2018 
6!30!20 19 
6!30!2020 
6!30!202 1 
6!3 0!2022 
6!30!2023 

Total 

Principal Interest Total 

5  220,000 $  45,373 $ 265,373 
225,000 39,653 264,653 
235,000 33,127 268,127 
240,000 25,725 265,725 
250,000 17,805 267,805 
255,000 9,180 264,180 

$ 1,425,000 $  170,863 $ 1,595,863 
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5.  Long-Term Liabilities (Continued) 

(c) Refunding Certificate for Student Services Center 

The College issued the Refunding Certificates of Participation Series B, 2O L The original issue amount was 
$2,080,000, due in one fmal aimual principal installment of $325,000 through year 20 8. Interest rates is 2.15%. 

The annual debt service requirements for the Certificates of Participation are as follows: 

Year Ending Principal Interest Total 

6/30/2018 $  325,000 $ 6,987 $  331,987 

Total $  325,000 $ 6,987 $  331,987 

(d) Certjficaies of Participation Series 2017 

The College issued the Certificates of Participation Series 207. The original issue amount was $8,710,000, due in 
annual principal installments ranging from $765,000 to $970,000 through year 2028. Interest rates vary from 2.00% to 
3.00%. 

The remaining debt service requirement for the Certificates of Participation - Series 2017 is as follows: 

Year Ending Principal Interest Total 

6/30/2018 $  765,000 $ 234,505 $  999,505 
6/30/2019 810,000 187,150 997,150 
6/30/2020 830,000 170,950 1,000,950 
6/30/202 845,000 54,350 999,350 
6/30/2022 860,000 137,450 997,450 

6/30/23 - 6/30/27 4,600,000 394,050 4,994,050 

Total $ 8,710,000 $ 1,278,455 $ 9,988,455 

6. Operating Lease Obligations 

The College leases certain facilities for its educational purposes. See below for descriptions of the various uses and the 
length of the operating leases. The related future rental payments are in the table below. 

The Bloomenshine Center, Arkansas City, KS is used for operating classes, a student lounge, administrative offices and 
r&ated educationaf activities. The operating lease has an option to renew for a term of three years at a time. Expenses 
for year ending June 30, 2017, were $99,600. 

The operating lease of 01 Industrial Drive, Mulvane, KS is used for operating classes and related educational activities. 
The operating lease has an option to renew for an additional two years. Expenses for year ending June 30, 2017, were 
$90,000. 

The operating lease of 410 E. Main, Mulvane, KS is used for operating classes, a student union, administrative offices 
and related educational activities. The operating lease has an option to renew for an additional three years. Expenses 
for year ending June 30, 2017, were $72,000. 

The operating lease of 410 E. Main, Mulvane, KS - Parking is used for parking for church-related functions, provided 
that said church functions are not held during regularly scheduled class periods. The operating lease has an option to 
renew for an additional three years negotiated at the time of the extension. Expenses for year ending June 30, 2017, 
were $3,600. 

27 



6. Operating Leae Obligations (Continued) 
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7. Othur Postemployment Hnilthcnre Benefits (Of'EB (Continued) 
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8. Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued) 

KPERS provides benefit to the following statewide pension groups under one plan, as provided by KSA 74 article 49: 

• Public employees, which include: 
• State/School Employees 
• Local Employees 

• Police and Firemen 
• Judges 

Substantially all public employees in Kansas are covered by the pension plan. Participation by local political 
subdivisions is optional, but irrevocab'e once elected. 

The employer contributions for non-public school district schools, as defmed in K.S.A. 74-4931(2) and (3), are funded 
by the State of Kansas on behalf of these employers. Therefore, these employers, vocational-technical schools and 
community junior colleges, are considered to be in a special funding situation as defined by GASB Statement No. 68. 
The State is treated as a nonemployer contributing entity in the System. Since these employers do not contribute directly 
to the System for active employees, there is no net pension liability or deferred inflows or outflows to report in the 
financial statements for active employees. The notes to the College's financial statements must disclose the portion of the 
nonemployer contributing entities total proportionate share of the collective net pension liability that is associated with 
the non-public school district employer. In addition, each non-public school district employer must recognize the pension 
expense associated with their employer as well as revenue in an amount equal to the nonemployer contributing entities 
total proportionate share of the collective pension expense associated with their employer. 

A nwnber of these employers make contributions directly to KPERS for KPERS retirees fi]ling KPERS covered 
positions per KSA. 74-493 7, 'working after retirement' employees. The resulting proportional share of these agencies 
working after retirement" contributions and resulting net pension liability are attributable to the employer. 

Benefits Provided. Benefits are established by statute and may only be changed by the General Assembly. Members 
with ten or more years of credited service, may retire as early as age 55, with an actuarially reduced monthly benefit. 
Normal retirement is at age 65, age 62 with ten years of credited service, or whenever a members combined age and 
years of certified service equal 85 "points". 

Monthly retirement benefits are based on a statutory formula that includes final average salary and years of service. 
When ending employment, members may withdraw their contributions from their individual accounts, including interest. 
Members who withdraw their accumulated contributions lose all rights and privileges of membership. For all pension 
coverage groups, the accumulated contributions and interest are deposited into and disbursed from the membership 
accumulated reserve fund as established by KSA 74-4922. 

Members choose one of seven payment options for their monthly retirement benefits. At retirement a member may 
receive a lump sum payment of up to 50% of the actuarial present value of the members lifetime benefit. The monthly 
retirement benefit is then permanently reduced based on the amount of the lump sum. Benefit increases, including ad 
hoc postretirement benefit increases, must be passed into law by the Kansas Legislature. Benefit increases are under the 
authority of the Legislature and the Governor of the State of Kansas. 

The 2012 Legislature made changes affecting new hires, current members and employers. A new KPERS 3 cash balance 
retirement plan for new hires starting January 1, 2015, was created. Normal retirement age for KPERS 3 is 65 with five 
years of service or 60 with 30 years of service. Early retirement is available at age 55 with ten years of service, with a 
reduced benefit. Monthly benefit options are an annuity benefit based on the account balance at retirement. 

Contributions. For all pension coverage groups, the retirement benefits are disbursed from the retirement benefit 
payment reserve fund established by KSA 74-4922. Member contribution rates are established by State law, and are paid 
by the employee according to the provisions of Section 414(h) of the Internal revenue code. State law provides that the 
employer contribution rates for each of the three state wide pension groups to be determined based on the results of each 
annual actuarial valuation. The contributions and assets of all groups are deposited in the Kansas Public Employees 
Retirement Fund established by KSA 74-492]. All of the retirement systems are funded on an actuarial reserve basis. 
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8.  Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued) 

For fiscal years beginning in 1995, Kansas legislation established statutory limits on increases in contribution rates for 
KJERS employers. Annual increases in the employer contribution rates related to subsequent benefit enhancements are 
not subject to these limitations. The statutory cap increase over the prior year contribution rate is 1 .10% of total payroll 
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016. 

The State is required to contribute 100% of the College's contractually required contributions, which are actuarially 
determined as an amount that, when combined with employee contributions, is expected to finance the cost of benefits 
earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. However, 
they do make contributions directly to KPERS for KPERS retirees filling KPERS covered positions per KSA 74-4937, 
"working after retirement' employees. The resulting proportional share of the "working after retirement" contributions 
and resu]ting new pension liability are attributable to the employer. 

KSA 74-4919 and KSA 74-49,210 establish the KPERS member-employee contribution rates. KPERS has multiple 
benefit structures and contribution rates depending on whether the employee is a KPERS 1, KPERS 2, or KPERS 3 
member. KPERS 1 members are active and contributing members hired before July 1, 2009. KPERS 2 members were 
first employed in a covered position on or after July 1, 2009, and KPERS 3 members were first employed in a covered 
position on or after January 1, 2015. Effective January 1, 2015, Kansas law established the KPERS member-employee 
contribution rate of 6% of covered salary for KPERS 1, KPERS 2, and KPERS 3 members. 

The College's contractually required contributions rate for the year ended June 30, 2017, was 16.00% of the annual 
college payroll of which .4729% of payroll was required from the College and 99.5271% of payroll was required from 
the State. The College's contributions to the pension plan were $17,649 for the year ended June 30, 2017. 

Legislature in the 2015 session authorized issuance of S 1.0 billion in net bond proceeds to improve the funding of the 
State/School group. The bonds were issued in August 2015, and deposited in the trust fund on August 20, 2015. 

Restatements - State/School Group. The KPERS GASB 68 report's schedules of the employer and nonemployer 
allocations as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, was restated to include an additional $1.0 billion in contributions 
received from the State for the state/school group from the State's issuance of pension obligation bonds. Additionally, the 
schedule of pension amounts by employer and nonemployee was restated to 1) receive certain allocations based on the 
changes to employer allocations discussed above for the state/school group, and 2) eliminate deferred inflows of 
resources of $1 .0 billion previousLy reported. Amounts reported for the local, police and fire, and judges groups were not 
impacted by the restatement. 

Employer Allocations. Although KPERS administers one cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan, 
separate (sub) actuarial valuations are prepared to determine the actuarial determined contribution rate by group. 
Following this method, the measurement of the collective net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources, deferred 
inflows of resources, and pension expense are determined separately for each of the following groups of the plan: 

• State/School 
• Local 
• Police and Fireman 
• Judges 

To facilitate the separate (sub) actuarial valuations, KPERS maintains separate accounts to identi' additions, 
deductions, and fiduciary net position applicable to each group. The allocation percentages presented for each group in 
the schedule of employer and nonemployer allocations are applied to amounts presented in the schedules of pension 
amounts by employer and nonemployer. 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Related to Pensions. At June 30, 2017, the College reported a liability for its proportionate share of the net pension 
liability that reflected a reduction for the State pension support provided to the College. The amount recognized by the 
College as its proportionate share of the net pension liability, the related state support, and the total portion of the net 
pension liability that was associated with the College were as follows: 
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8. Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued) 

Colleges proportionate share of the net pension liability 253,817 

State's proportionate share of the net pension liability 
associated with the College 16,922,056 

$ 17,175,873 

The net pension liability was measured as of December 31, 2016, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2017. The total 
pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of the that date. 
The Colleges proportion of the net pension liability was based on the ratio of its contributions to the total of the 
employer and non-employer contributions of the group for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. The contributions used 
exclude contributions made for prior service, excess benefits, and irregular payments. At June 30, 2017, the combined 
College and state's proportion was 0.2552%, which was an increase of 0.0017% from its proportion measured as of June 
30, 2016. 

For the actuarial report as of June 30, 2016, there were changes in assumptions and benefits as described in the notes to 
the required supplemental information. 

There were no changes between the measurement date of December 31, 2016, rolled forward to June 30, 2017, and the 
Colleges reporting date of June 30, 2017. 

For the year ended June 30, 2017, the College recognized pension expense of $1,137,300 and revenue of $1,137,300 for 
support provided by the state. For the portion related to the 'working after retirement" the College recognized pension 
expense of $184,877, which includes the changes in the collective net pension liability, projected earnings on pension 
plan investments, and the amortization of deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources for the current 
period. At June 30, 2016, the College did not report deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources due 
to the States proportionate share being 100%. However, due to the restatement and changes in the information presented 
in the System's report, at June 30, 2017, the college now does report deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows 
of resources. At the measurement date of June 30, 2016, the College reported deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions for the College from the following sources: 

Differences between expected and actual experience 

Changes of assumptions 

Net difference between projected and actual 
earnings on pension plan investments 

Changes in proportion and differences between 
College contributions and proportionate share of 
contributions 

Total 

Deferred Deferred 
Outflows Inflows 

of Resources of Resources 

$ - $ 11,982 

- 459 

22,922 - 

214,350 5,454 

$  237,272 $ 17,895 
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8. Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued) 

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pension will be 
recognized in pension expenses by the College as follows: 

Year ended June 30: Amount 

2017 S 47,189 
2018 47,189 
2019 54,935 
2020 50,605 
2021 19,459 

Thereafter - 

S 219,377 

Actuarial Assumptions. The total pension liability recognized by the State and the portion recognized by the College 
were determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2016, which was rolled forward to Itine 30, 2017, using 
the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 

• Price Inflation 
• Wage inflation 
• Sa'ary increases, including wage increases 

• Long-term rate of return, net of investment 
expense, and including price inflation 

3.0 percent 
4.0 percent 
4.0 to 16.0 percent, including 
inflation 
8.0 percent 

Mortality rates were based on the P.2-2000 Combined Mortality Table for Males or Females, as appropriate, with 
adjustments for mortality improvements based on Scale AA. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2016, valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience 
study conducted for the three year period ending December 31, 2012. 

The long-term expected rate of return of pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method in 
which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment 
expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term 
expected rate of return by weigbting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and 
by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the 
pension plan es target asset allocation as of June 30, 2016, are summarized in the following table: 

Asset class 

Global Equity 
Fixed Income 
Yield Driven 
Real Return 
Real Estate 
Alternatives 
Short-Term Investments 

Total 

Long-term 
target 

allocation 

47 .00% 
13.00% 
8.00% 

11.00% 
11.00% 
8.00% 
2.00% 

1QQ 

Long-term 
expected 
real rate 
of return 

6.80% 
1.25% 
6.55% 
1.7 1% 
5.05% 
9.85% 

-0.25% 
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8. Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued) 

Discount Rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 8.00%. The projection of cash flows 
used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the contractually 
required rate. The State, School and Local employers do not necessarily contribute the full actuarially determined rate. 
Based on legislation passed in 1993, the employer contribution rates certified by the Systems Board of Trustees for these 
groups may not increase by more than the statutory cap. The expected KPERS emp]oyer statutory contribution was 
modeled for futuie years, assuming all actuarial assumptions are met in future years. Based on those assumptions, the 
pension plans fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of 
current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension investments was applied to all 
periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 

Sensitivity of the College's proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate. The 
table below presents the net pension liability of the Pension Plan as of June 30, 2016, calculated using the discount rate 
of 8.00%, as well as what the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage 
point lower (7.00%) or 1-percentage point higher (9.00%) than the current rate: 

1% Decrease Discount rate 1% Increase 
(7.00%) (8.00%) (9.00%) 

$330,003 $253,787 $189,047 

9. Risk Management 

The College is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and 
omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. These risks are covered by commercial insurance purchased 
from independent third parties. There has been no significant change in insurance coverage from the previous fiscal 
year. Settled claims have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three years. 

10. Related Party Transactions Between the College and its Component Unit 

The Cowley College Foundation paid $169,068 in student scholarships during the current fiscal year. 

The College provides administrative support, office space, and other services to the Cowley College Foundation. The 
Foundation does not reimburse the College for expenses incurred. 

11. Contingent Liabilities 

The College receives significant financial assistance from numerous federal and state governmental agencies in the form 
of grants and state pass-through aid. The disbursement of funds received under these programs generally requires 
compliance with terms and conditions specified in the grant agreements and is subject to audit. Any disallowed claims 
resulting from such audits could become a liability of the College. However, in the opinion of management, any such 
disallowed claims would not have a material effect on the financial statements. 

The College is a defendant in various pending litigation and administrative proceedings. Management anticipates that 
any potential claims, if any, against the College would be covered by insurance and would not materially affect the 
College's financial position. 

12. Implementation of New Standard 

GASB issued Statement No. 82, Pension Issues. The primary objective of this statement is to issues regarding (1) the 
presentation of payroll-related measures in required supplementary information, (2) the selection of assumptions and the 
treatment of deviations from the guidance in the Actuarial Standard of Practice for financial reporting purposes, and (3) 
the classification of payments made by employers to satisfy employee (plan member) contribution requirements.. The 
College implemented this standard for the year ended June 30, 2017. The provisions of this statement had no significant 
effect on the Colleges current financial statements. 
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13. Prior Period Adjustment 

The college has a prior period adjustment due to a correction for recording the bond premium amortization. The net 
effect to income was $86, 1 14. 

14. Subsequent Events 

Management has evaluated the effects on the financial statements of subsequent events occurring through the date of this 
report, which is the date at which the fmancial statements were available to be issued. 
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY fNFORMATION 



Cowley County Community College and Area Vocational-Technical School 

Other Post Employment Benefits 
Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Schedule of Funding Progress: 

Actuarial 
Valuation 

Date 

7/1/2008 
7/1/2011 
7/1/2014 

UAAL as a 
Percent of 
Covered 
Payroll 

((b-a)/c)) 

19.9% 
16.6% 
17.6% 

Actuarial 
Value of 
Assets 

(a) 

$ 

Fiscal 
Year 

Ended 

6/30/2015 
6/30/2016 
6/30/2017  

Actuarial 
Accrued 
Liability 
(AAL) 

(b) 

$ 1,502,502 
1,477,303 
1,790,097 

Annua F 
OPEB 
Cost 

$ 227,893 
232,758 
225,854  

Unfunded Funded Covered 
AAL Ratio Payroll 
(b-a) (a/b) (c) 

S 1,502,502 0.0% S 7,548,810 
1,477,303 0.0% 8,905,358 
1,790,097 0.0% 10,160,877 

Annual 
OPEB Net 
Cost OPEB 

Contributed Obligation 

91,000 $ 1,270,140 
94,000 1 ,408,898 

113,000 1,521,752 

Schedule of Emp]oyer Contributions: 

Information for earlier years is not available as June 30, 2009 is the first year of implementation of GASB No. 45. 
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Cowley County Community College And Area Vocational-Technical School 

Notes to Required Supplementary Information 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Changes in benefit terms: 

Effective January 1,2015, a new KPERS 3 cash balance retirement plan for new hires was created. Also, effective Jariu.ary 1, 
2015, Kansas law established the KPERS member employee contribution rate of 6% of covered salary for KPERS 1, KPERS 
2, and KPERS 3 members. 

Changes in assumptions: 

Per the KPERS' GASB 68 actuarial report as of June 30, 2016, assumptions changed to include salary increases in current 
year. It also includes changes from the updated RP-2000 Combine Mortality Tables. Further, assumptions have been updated 
based on the results of an actuarial experience study conducted for the three year period ending December 31, 2012. 
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Cowley County Community College and Area Vocational-Technical School 

Schedule of Cash Receipts, Expenditures, and Changes in Unencumbered Cash 
Budget and Actual - Budgetary Basis 

Postsecondary Technical Education Fund 
Year Ended June 30,2017 

Variance 
Actual With Final 

Amounts Budget 

- Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Over 

Original Final Basis (Under) 

S  914,957 $  914,957 5 1,206,551 $  29L594 
- - 110,066 110,066 

2,665.821 2,665,821 2,914,146 248,325 
- - 773 773 

$  3,580,778 $  3.580.778 4,231.536 $  650,758 

$  2.536.320 $  2.536,320 2.981,880 S  445.560 
242,489 242,489 74,464 (168,025) 
495.317 495,317 367,077 (128,240) 

1,030,146 1,030,146 371.471 (658,675) 
1.601.534 1,601,534 264,463 (1.337,071) 

- - 154,218 154,218 
- - 11.678 11,678 

$  5,905.806 $  5,905,806 4.225.251 5 (1,680,555) 

6,285 

1,605 

$ 7,890 

5 7,890 

••_• 7.890 

Cash Receiits 
Student sources 
Federal sources 
State sources 
Other sources 

Total Cash Receipts 

penditures and Transfers Subject to Budg 
Instruction 
Academic support 
Student services 
Institutional support 
Operation and maintenance 
Scholarships 
Transfers 

Total Expenditures and Trans1ers Subject to Budget 

Receipts Over (Under) Expenditures 

Unencumbered Cash, July 1 

Unencumbered Cash, June 30 

Unencumbered Cash, June30 
Receivables 

GAAP I'und balance 
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Cowley County Community College arid Area Vocational-Technical School 

Schedule of Cash Receipts, Expenditures, and Changes in Unencumbered Cash 

Budget and Actual - Budgetary Basis 

Adult Education Fund 

Year Ended June 30,2017 

Variance 

Actual With FinaP 
Amounts Budget 

Fudgecd Amounts Budgetaty Over 

Origiflal nal Basis (Under) 

S 78,685 $ 78.685 $ 79,910 $ 1,225 
51,443 51,443 50,678 (765) 

35,000 35,000 - (35,000) 
121.000 121,000 123,664 2.664 

$  286,128 5  286,128 254,252 $ (31,876) 

$ (313,673) 5 (313,673) 280.467 S 594,140 

(26,215) 

45,865 

$ 19,650 

5 19,650 

$ 19,650 

Cash ReceiDts 
Federal Sources 
State sources 

Local sources 
Other sources 

Total Cash Receipts 

ExDenditures Subject to Budget 
instruction 

Receipts Over (Undcr Expenditures 

Unencumbered Cash, July 1 

Unencumbered Cash, June30 

Unencumbered Cash, June 30 

Receivables 

GAAP fund balance 
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Cowley County Community College and Area Vocational-Technical Schoo' 

Schedule of Cash Receipts, Expenditures, and Changes in Unencumbered Cash 
Budget and Actua' - Budgetary Basis 

Aduft Suppkmentary Fund 
Year Ended June 30,2017 

Variance 
Actual With Final 

Amounts Budget 
Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Over 

Original Final Basis (Under) 

S -  S -  S 19,682 S 19,682 
- - 1,497 1,497 

$ -  $ - 21,179 $ 21,179 

$ -  $ - 13,193 S 13J93 

7,986 

16,110 

$ 24,096 

$ 24,096 

24,096 

Cash Receipts 
Student sources 
Other sources 

Total Cash Receipts 

Expenditures Subject to Budget 
Instruction 

Receipts Over (Under) Expenditures 

Unencumbered Cash, July I 

Unencumbered Cash, June 30 

Unencumbered Cash, June 30 

ReceivabLes 

GAAP fund balance 
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Cowley County Community College and Area Vocational-Technical School 

Schedule of Cash Receipts, Expenditures, and Changes in Unencumbered Cash 
Budget and Actual - Budgetary Basis 

Motorcycle Driver Safety Fund 
Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Vaiiance 
Actual With Final 

Amounts Budget 
Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Over 

Original Final Basis (Under) 

$ 13,600 $ 13,600 $ -  $ (13.600) 
- - 1,367 1,367 
- - 2,925 2,925 
- - 18,171 18,171 

$ 13,600 $ 13,600 22.463 $ 8,863 

$ 12,000 $ 12,000 -  $ (12,000) 
- - 5.324 5,324 

$ 12,000 $ 12,000 5,324 $ (6,676) 

17,139 

9.743 

$ 26,882 

S 26,882 

$ 26.882 

Cash Receipts 
Student sources 
Sales 
Other sources 
Transfer front other funds 

Total Cash Receipts 

Expenditures Subject to Budget 
Instruction 
Cost of goods sold 

Total Expenditures Subject to Budget 

Receipts Over (Under) Expenditures 

Unencumbered Cash, July 1 

Unencumbered Cash, June30 

Unencumbered Cash, June30 

Receivables 

C3AAP fund balance 
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Cowley County Community College and Area Vocational-Technical School 

Schedule of Cash Receipts, Expenditures, and Changes in Unencumbered Cash 
Budget and Actual - Budgetary Basis 

Bookstore Fund 
Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Variance 
Actual Wkh Final 

Amounts Budget 
Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Over 

Original Final Basis (Under) 

3,408,000 3,408000 $  1,284,973 (2.123,027) 

208,852 208,852 192,800 (16,052) 
175,980 175,980 110,287 (65,693) 

- - 140,950 140,950 

3,000,000 3,000,000 1,002,745 (1.997,255) 
12,000 12,000 1,869 (10,131) 

- - 39,363 (39,363) 

$  3396,832 3,396,832 1,488,014  (1,987,544) 

(203,041) 

208,317 

5,276 

5,276 

450,230 

455,506 

Cash Receipts 
Saies 

Expenditures Subject to Budget 
Salaries and benefits 
General operating expenses 

Supplies 
Cost of goods sold 
Equipment 
Transfer to other funds 

Total Expenditures Subject to Budget 

Receipts Over (Under) Expenditures 

Unencumbered Cash, July 1 

Unencumbered Cash, June 30 

Unencumbered Cash, June 30 

Lnventory 

GAAP I'und baiance 
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Cowley County Community College and Area Vocational-Technical School 

Schedule of Cash Receipts, Expenditures, and Changes in Unencumbered Cash 
Budget 2nd Actual - Budgetary Basis 

Housing Fund 
Year Ended June 30,2017 

Variance 
Actual With Final 

Amounts Budget 
Budgeted Amounts Budgetaxy Over 

Original Final Basis (Under) 

$ - $ - 5 34,625 5 34.625 
83,132 83,132 2,210,023 2,126,891 

3.554,996 3,554,996 39.022 (3,515,974) 

$  3.638,128 $  3,638,128 2,283.670 5 (1,354,458) 

$  333,385 $  333,385 313.963 $ (19,422) 
5,000 5,000 95,506 90,506 

- - 43,799 43,799 
- - 889,956 889,956 

438,000 438.000 75,982 (362,018) 
60,000 60,000 - (60,000) 

298,190 298,190 298,190 - 
2,4 19,650 2,419,650 - (2,419,650) 

- - 10,000 (10,000) 

5 3.554.225 $  3,554,225 1,727,396 $ (1,846.829) 

556,274 

1,146.353 

$ 1,702,627 

$ 1,702,627 

$ 1,702627 

Cash ReceiDts 
Student sources 
Sales 
Other income 

Total Cash Receipts 

Ext,enditures Subiect to Budcet 
Salaries and benefits 
General operating expenses 
Supplies 
Cost of goods sold 
Utilities 
Equipment 
Debt service 
Other expense 
Transfer to other funds 

Total Expenditures Subject to Budget 

Receipts Over (Under) Ixpenditures 

Unencumbered Cash, JuLy 1 

Unencumbered Cash, June 30 

Unencumbered Cash, June 30 

Receivables 

GAAP fund balance 
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Cowley County Community College and Area Vocational-Technical School 

Schedule of Cash Receipts, Expenditures, and Changes in Unencumbered Cash 
Budget and Actual - Budgetary Basis 

Cosmetology lund 
Year Ended June30, 2017 

Variance 
Actual With Final 

Amounts Budget 
Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Over 

Original Final Basis (Under) 

$ 90,000 5 90.000 S 7,131 S (82,869) 
- - 14,500 14.500 

$ 90,000 $ 90,000 21,631 $ (68,369) 

S -  S - 200 $ 200 
8,000 89,000 2,991 (86.009) 

- - 2,006 2,006 

$ 89.000 89,000 5,197 $ (83.803) 

16,434 

(16,135) 

S 299 

$ 299 

S 299 

Cash Recçpts 
Sales 
Other income 

1oial Cash Receipts 

penditures Subject to Budget 
General operating expenses 
Cost of goods sold 
Transfer to other funds 

Total E>penditures Subject to Budget 

Receipts Over (Under) Expenditures 

Unencumbered Cash, July 1 

Unencumbered Cash, June 30 

Unencumbered Cash. June 30 

Receivables 

GAAP fund balance 
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Cowley County Conimunity College and Area Vocational-Technical School 

Schedule of Cash Receipts, Expenditures, and Changes in Unencumbered Cash 
Budget and Actual - Budgetary Basis 

Weilness Center Fund 
Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Variance 
Actual With Final 

Amounts Budget 
Budgeted Amounts Budgetaxy Over 

Original Final Basis (Under 

$ 40,000 $ 40,000 $ 12,260 $ (27,740) 
30,470 30,470 17,592 (12,878) 

- - 111.000 111,000 

$ 70,470 $ 70,470 140,852 $ 70,382 

$ 78,652 $ 78,652 69,781 $ (8,871) 
10.912 10,912 4,763 (6.149) 

- - 2,150 2.150 
- - 188 188 

1,000 1.000 - (1,000) 
- - 6,215 (6,215) 

$ 90,564 $ 90,564 83,097 $ (19,897) 

57,755 

(56,872) 

883 

$ 883 

883 

Cash Receir,ts 
Student sources 
Sates 
Other income 

Total Cash Receipts 

ExnendtturesSubiectto Budei 
Salaries and benefits 
General operating expenses 
Supplies 
Cost of goods sold 
Equipment 
Transfer to other funds 

Total Expenditures Subject to Budget 

Receipts Over (Under) Expenditures 

Unencumbered Cash, July 1 

Unencumbered Cash, June 30 

Unencumbered Cash, June30 
Receivables 

GAAP ftmd balance 
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Cowley County Coinniunity College and Area Vocational-Technical School 

Schedule of Cash Receipts, Expenditures, and Changes in Unencumbered Cash 
Budget and Actual - Budgetary Basis 

Deli Fund 
Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Variance 
Actual With Final 

Amounts Budget 
Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Over 

Original Final Basis (Under) 

63,500 $ 63,500 $ 43,539 $ (19,961) 

S 7.220 $ 7,220 4,943 $ (2,277) 
- - 35,768 35,768 

50,000 50,000 - (50.000) 

$ 57.220 5 57,220 40,711 $ (16.509) 

2,828 

34,647 

5 37,475 

5 37.475 

$ 37,475 

Cash Receipts 
Sales 

Expcnditurcs Subject to Budg 
General operating expenses 
Supplies 
Cost of goods sold 

Total Expenditures Subject to Budget 

Receipts Over (Under) Expenditures 

Unencumbered Cash, July l 

Unencumbered Cash, June30 

Unencumbered Cash. June30 

Inventory 

GAAP find balance 

49 



Cowley County Community College and Area Vocational-Technical School 

Schedule of Cash Receipts, Expenditures, and Changes in Unencumbered Cash 
Budget and Actual - Budgetary Basis 

Special Assessment Fund 
Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Cash Receipts 

Expenditures Subject to Bud gt 
Plant equipment' and facility 

Receipts Over (Under) Expenditures 

Unencumbered Cash. July I 

Unencumbered Cash, June30 

Unencumbered Cash, June30 

Receivables 

Budgeted Amounts 

Original Final - 

S - S - S  

Variance 
Actual With Final 

Amounts Budget 
Budgetary Over 

Basis (Under) 

- s 

70J46 S - $ - 70,146 

(70. 146) 

70,146 

S - 

$ 

GAAP fond balance $ 
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Cowley County Community College and Area Vocational-Technical School 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through 
Grantor Program Title 

Department of Education 
Direct Programs: 

Student Financial Aid (SFA) Cluster 
Federal Work-Study Program 
Supplemental Education Opportunity Grant 
Federal Direct Student Loan 
PELL Grant 

Total Student Financial Aid (SFA) Cluster 

TRIO Student Support Services i5-16 
TRIO Student Support Services 16-17 
TRIO Upper Bound Program 15-16 
TRIO Upper Bound Program 16-17 

Total TRIO Cluster 

Passed Through Kansas Board of Regents: 
Adult Education - Basic Grants to States 
Carl Perkins 

Federal 
CFDA Identifying 

Number Number 

84.033 P033A161504 
84.007 P007A161 504 
84.268 P268K171454 
84.063 P063P161454 

84.042A P042A1 10052-IS 
84.042A P042A1601 10 
84.047A P047A121 104-15 
84.047A P047A121 104-16 

84.002 
84.048A 

Disbursements/ 
Expenditures 

$ 107,230 
111,562 

5,016,653 
4,318,549 

9.5 53,994 

92,566 
286,962 

50,859 
160,111 

590,498 

79,910 
110,136 

TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 10.334,538 

TOTAL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS $  10,334,538 

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

Note I - Basis of Presentation 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the federal grant activity of Cowley County Community 
College of Arkansas City, Kansas, under programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2017. The information in the Schedule is 
presented in accordance with the requirements ol Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 

Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of' the 
operations of the College it is not intended to and does not present the flnancia! position, changes in net position, or cash flows of the College. 

Note 2 - Summary 
ofSigniIicant 

 Account Policies 

(1) €xpenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost 
principals contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. 

(2) The College has not elected to use the 10 percent de minims indirect cost rate as allowed under the Uniform Guidance. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT 

OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT 
AUDITING STANDARDS 

Board of Trustees 
Cowley County Community College and Area Vocational-Technical School 
Arkansas City, Kansas 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditiig standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the ComptrolLer General of 
the United States, the fmancial statements of the business-type activities, and the aggregate discretely presented component 
unit of Cowley County Community College and Area Vocational-Technical School, as of and for the year ended Jme 30, 
2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Cowky County Community CoIege and 
Area Vocational-Technical School's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 6,2017. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Cowley County Comimmity College and 
Area Vocational-Technical School's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Cowley County Commi.mity College and Area 
Vocational-Technical School's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Cowley 
County Community College and Area Vocational-Technical School's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, 
in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely 
basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected 
and corrected on a timely basis. A signlcant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was 
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies 
and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, 
during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. We did identify two certain deficiencies in internal 
control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs that we consider to be a significant 
deficiency (2017-001, 2017-002, 2017-003). 

sjh/. corn 
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Cowley County Community College and Area Vocational-
Tecimical School's financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct 
and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance 
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results 
of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government 
Auditing Standards. 

Cowley County Community College and Area Vocational-Technical School's Response to Findings 

Cowley County Community College and Area Vocational-Technical School's response to the findings identified in our audit 
is described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Cowley County Community College and Area 
Vocational-Technical School's response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial 
statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results 
of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on compliance. This 
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the 
entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Swindoll, Janzen, Hawk, & Loyd, LLC 
}lutchinson, Kansas 

December 6,2017 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS 
THAT COULD HAVE A DIRECT AN!) MATERJAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR 

PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY TIlE 
UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

Board of Trustees 
Cowley County Community CoJiege and Area Vocational-Technica' School 
Arkansas City, Kansas 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited Cow ley County Community College and Area Vocational-Technical School's (College) compliance with 
the types ofcornpliance requirements described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material 
effect on each of the College's major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2017. The College's major federal 
programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and 
questioned costs. 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and 
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the College's major federal programs based on our 
audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States ofAmerica; the standards applicable to financial audits contained 
in GovernmensAuditingStandatds, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of 
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Adrainisfrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements of Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards arid Uniform Guidance require that we pJan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence about the College's compliance with those requirements and performing such other 
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonabl.e basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. 
However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the College's compliance. 

Opinion on Each .4lajor Federal Program 

in our opinion, the College, complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above 
that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs identitied in the stunmary of auditor's 
results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs for the year ended June 30,2017. 
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of the College is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with 
the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered 
the College's internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect 
on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control 
over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
College's internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does 
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and 
correct noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness 
in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, 
such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compi lance requirement of a federal 
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A sign jficant deficiency in internal control 
over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over 
compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of interna! control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we 
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, 
this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Sindc - 

Swiridoll, Janzen, Hawk, and Loyd, LLC 
Hutchinson, Kansas 

December 6, 2017 
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Cowley County Community College and Area Vocational-Technical School 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 

SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS 

1. The auditors report expresses an unmodified opinion on the financial statements of Cowley County Community 
College and Area Vocational-Technical School, Arkansas City, Kansas were prepared in accordance with 
GAAP. 

2. Significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in the Independent 
Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based 
on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance With Government Auditing Standards. 

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Cowley County Community College and 
Area Vocational-Technical School, Arkansas City, Kansas, which would be required to be reported in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the audit. 

4. No significant deficiencies related to the audit of the major federal award programs are reported in the Report 
on Compliance with Requirements that Could Have a Direct and Material Effect on Each Major Program and 
Internal Control over Compliance Required by Uniform Guidance. 

5. The auditor's report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Cowley County Community 
College and Area Vocational-Technical School, Arkansas City, Kansas expresses an unmodified opinion. 

6. There is one audit finding that is required to be reported in accordance with 2CFR section 200.516(a). 

7. The programs tested as major programs include: 
CFDA No. 

Student Financial Aid Programs: 
Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grant Program 84.007 
Federal Work-Study Program 84.033 
Federal PELL Grant Program 84.063 
Federal Direct Student Loan Program 84.268 

8. The threshold for distinguishing Types A and B program was $750,000. 

9. Cowley County Community College and Area Vocational-Technical School, Arkansas City, Kansas was 
determined to be a low-risk auditee. 

FINDINGS--FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT 

2017-001  SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCY- BANK RECONCILATION 

Condition: While performing procedures on cash accounts, we noted that the bank account did not 
reconcile. 

Criteria: Part of a strong internal control system in the area of cash is ensuring that the bank account 
reconciles to the cash accounts in the general ledger. 

Cause: There are multiple potential causes. In our professional judgement, we believe that the software 
conversion, and subsequently learning how the new software processes transactions, played the biggest 
part. It is during the month of conversion, that the difference appeared. In our judgement, as part of the 
conversion, the change in how student revenue was being recorded, was the most significant part. The new 
system records revenue when posting to student's accounts, versus recording when cash was received. In 
addition, the bank reconciliation process is primarily done manually via spreadsheets, with the exception 
ofclearing checks. The new software has a module that will allow the College to start performing the entire 
reconciliation electronically, once it has been fully set-up. Finally, this process historically takes many 
hours. The College has hired a Staff Accountant that is primarily dedicated to performing this task. 
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Cowley County Community College and Area Vocational-Technical School 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 

F1XD1NGS--FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT (Continued) 

2017-OW  SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCY- BANK RECONCILATION (Continued) 

Effect: Cash could potentially be materially understated. Non-reconciled accounts are susceptible to 
misuse and potentially theft. 

information to provide proper perspective: It is important to note that in fiscal year 17-18, the bank 
reconciliation has not produced significant differences, so we believe, based on current evidence, that 
this is not an ongoing issue, and it further supports the assertion of the software conversion as a large 
portion of the cause. In addition, the difference was in the direction that the bank had more cash than 
what was recorded on the general ledger. 

Recommendation: We recommend utilizing the new bank reconciliation module in the new software 
in order to eliminate any other differences. 

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions: Management agrees with this 
finding and are actively pursuing set-up of the new bank reconciliation module. In addition, they have 
hired a Staff Accountant to assist the accountant. This position is first dedicated to the bank 
reconciliation process, and monitors this on a daily basis. 

20 17-002  SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCY- ACCOUNTS RECEiVABLE RECONCILATION 

Condition: While performing procedures on cash and receipts, we noted that the student accounts 
receivable subsidiary ledger did not agree to the general ledger. 

Criteria: Part of a strong internal control system in the area of cash and receipts is ensuring that the 
accounts receivable subsidiary ledger reconciles to the accounts receivable in the general ledger. 

Cause: In the past, the old software did not record transactions and post to an accounts receivable. This 
was always an annual adjustment to record the student accounts receivable. The new software is now 
set up to track and post activity to the receivable. There would have been differences due to software 
conversion and recording activity that related to prior years. 

Effect: Accounts receivable could potentially be materially understatedloverstated. Non-reconciled 
accounts are susceptible to misuse and potentially theft. 

Jnformation to provide proper perspective: The adjustment needed was to reduce accounts receivable, 
which is saying that receipts had not been removed from the receivab]e and posted to cash. This would 
directly affect the bank reconciliation and is also believed to be a part the difference in the above bank 
reconciliation point. 

Recommendation: We recommend that the subsidiary ledger relating to student accounts receivable be 
formaUy reconciled monthly to the general ledger. This reconciliation should be documented. It should 
also be reviewed by a supervisor and the review should be documented by having the supervisor sign 
off on it. 

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions: Management agrees with this 
finding and are actively pursuing set-up of a formal reconciliation process. In addition, they have hired 
a Staff Accountant to assist in the receipting area and to perform reconciliation. 
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Cowley County Community College and Area Vocational-Technical School 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 

FINDINGS--FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT (Continued) 

20 17-003  SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCY- CAPITAL ASSETS 

Condition: There was a noncash land donation that was not recorded. 

Criteria: Part of a strong internal control system in the area of capital assets is ensuring that the database 
is complete as well as the ability to identify and locate the assets in the database. 

Cause: Noncash donations of land are not commonly donated directly to the College. 

Effect: Capital assets and corresponding revenue could potentialiy be materially understated. 

Prior Year Finding: There has been a capital asset finding in prior years, but the noncash land donation 
is new. See the Summary Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings for status on previous capital asset 
findings. 

Recommendation: We recommend that a policy is put into place on how to accept and record noncash 
donations of property and equipment. 

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions: Management agrees with this 
finding and are actively pursuing a better tracking process. This includes continual education of the staff 
of the College on the policies and procedures regarding capital assets, and the development of a pof icy 
on recording noncash donations of property and equipment. 

FINDINGS AND QUESTION4ED COSTS--MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT 

Student Financial Aid Programs 

Federal Supplemental Education Opportunity Grant, CFDA No. 84.007. Federal Work-Study Program CFDA No. 
84.033. Federal Pell Grant Program CFDA No. 84.063. Federal Direct Student Loan Program CFDA No. 84.268 

There were no reportable findings for the year ended June 30, 2017. 
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FINDINGS--FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT 

2016-001 SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCY - CAPITAL ASSETS 

Condition: During the review of capital assets we found severaL discrepancies with the capital asset 
additions and disposal lists. We also noticed that the asset tags were not located on several pieces of 
equipment, i.e. lawn equipment and tractor. 

Recommendation: We recommend that since the tag is the primary device of tracking and identifiing 
various equipment as belonging to the College, that all assets have the tag easily visible on the equipment. 
We also recommend asset records be updated when assets are moved to other sites or disposed 
Management concurred with the recommendation and indicated that the procedures would be implemented. 

Current Status: The recommended procedures were implemented. The College did not have similar 
findings for 2017. 

FiNDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS--MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT 

Student Financial Aid Programs 

Federal Supplemental Education Opportunity Grant, CFDA No. 84.007. Federal Work-Study Program CFDA No. 
84.033. Federal Pell Grant Program CFDA No. 84.063. Federal Direct Student Loan Program CFDA No. 84.268, 
Academic Competitiveness Grant CFDA No. 84.375 

There were no reportable findings for the year ended June 30, 2016. 
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